Request for Proposal SCL-3359
Addendum 

11/03/2014

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal #SCL-3359 titled SCL Pre-Employment and NERC Background Checks released on October 17, 2014.  The due date and time for responses has been changed to November 17, 2014 4:00PM (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP. This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	10/22/2014
	11/03/2014
	Who is currently providing this service and, if possible, what is their rate?
	A-Check America is our current contractor.  Contract information can be viewed via the following link
http://web6.seattle.gov/FAS/SummitPan/R296/R296.ResultAttachments.aspx?CNTRCT_ID=0000002414&NAME1=A-CHECK+AMERICA%2c+INC&SortOnReturn=SortOnReturn=vwstgrdvPoListSortExp%253d%2526vwstgrdvPoListSortDir%253d0 
	

	2
	10/22/2014
	11/03/2014
	On average, how many employment verifications do applicants have?
	Typically 1-2 employers per applicant.
	

	3
	10/22/2014
	11/03/2014
	What portion of the projected volume of 1000 per annum checks will contain international verifications?
	Approx. 65
	

	4
	10/22/2014
	11/03/2014
	Is it known which country (ies) will be included in these verifications?
	It varies.  Most common have been Canada, India and Pakistan.
	

	5
	10/22/2014
	11/03/2014
	Will you be extending your turnaround time requirements for international verifications? (As many countries verification information is difficult to obtain within the timeframe of the RFQ).
	
	Revise RFP Page 6 Response/Turnaround Times to read:   The vendor shall provide five (5) business days’ turnaround time from submittal of orders placed by the City.  Vendor will begin the check within 24 hours.  Turnaround time for International searches will be negotiated.

	6
	10/27/2014
	11/03/2014
	I see in the minimum qualifications for RFP No. SCL-3359 - SCL Pre-Employment and NERC Background Checks – that vendors must have a minimum of three years of continuous experience. My company underwent a change in corporate status last year following the passing of the former owner and we were issued a new FEIN. Would this matter disqualify us from the RFP?
	You company was issued a new FEIN and legally that is a new company with a new Tax ID thus has not been in three continuous years.  Therefore you would not meet the minimum qualification for continuous experience.
	

	7
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	Do you require all Aliases/AKA’s to be screened using the same screening package requirements?
	Yes we do.
	

	8
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	All of your requested screening packages include an International Criminal check as part of the screening criteria.  It is our experience that only a very small percentage of applicants will originate/have lived in another country.  In order to be able to provide you with a more efficient and cost-effective solution, may we exclude International Criminal Searches from these packages and provide those searches as a separate, as-needed item (A La Carte)?
	Yes that would be fine.
	See Section 7 Page 13 :

Revised price sheet to add Item 4d International Criminal checks as an “A La Carte” item and specify that responses must include pricing for all listed items..  See below:
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See Page 4 Section 5, Specification and Scope of Work:  Revise  to add International Verification for Canada, India and Pakistan as an A La Carte Quote item.

	9
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	International Search pricing can vary significantly from country to country.  For purposes of this proposal, are there any specific countries that you would like to be given pricing for, with the understanding that countries outside of those specified may incur additional costs and will be discussed on a case-by-case basis?
	
	For purposes of this proposal, the three specific countries to be priced A La Carte are Canada, India and Pakistan.  Countries outside of those specified may incur additional costs and will be discussed on a case-by-case basis.

	10
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	In reference to section 5. Specifications and Scope of Work, page 4: Item 3 is titled “NERC 7 Year Package Quote,” but all package contents request a 10 year scope. Please confirm the City would like item 3 “NERC 7 Year Package Quote” to include only a 7 year scope.
	
	See Page 4 Section 5, Specification and Scope of Work:  All items listed under Package #3 should be 7 Years.  Revise to a 7 year search for Package #3.

	11
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	Why are you evaluating new providers for pre-employment background investigations?
	We currently have a contract for Citywide background checks that will remain in force.  This contract is specifically for NERC related background checks that are a requirement of Seattle City Light specifically for their employees and contractors.
	

	12
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	What is your anticipated start date?
	January 1, 2015
	

	13
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	Attachment #1 Insurance Requirements and Attachment #2 Terms and Conditions, as provided by the City, are both blank documents. Could the City please provide these attachments in their entirety for vendors to complete?
	Attachment #1 Insurance Requirements should be sent to your Broker upon receipt of the Intent to award and they will then generate the Insurance Certificate to be submitted to the City.  There is nothing to complete.  Attachment #2 Terms and Conditions need not be completed, they are simply the terms that will apply to this contract and will be incorporated by reference and attached to the executed contract.  All proposers must fully comply with these Terms and Conditions.
	

	14
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	Generally, the FCRA prohibits the reporting of non-convictions older than 7 years unless the applicant is reasonably expected to earn $75,000 or more per year. Does the City have permissible purpose to run criminal searches for a 10 year scope? Can the City provide documentation of such authorization?
	The NERC standard requires a 7 year check. The 10 year requirement is a City of Seattle Personnel Rule....

10.3.1.B Definitions

http://www.seattle.gov/personnel/resources/pubs/rules/Personnel_Rule_10.3_.pdf 
	

	15
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	Some of our products, such as a statewide criminal search, require statutory fees that vary by state. Is it acceptable for vendors to price these services with the base price and attach a chart with all applicable fees?
	Proposers shall quote a base price and include a chart with applicable fees listed by state.
	

	16
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	Please confirm the functionality of the “Criminal – Federal Nationwide” service. Are you looking for federal level criminal records or are you looking for a nationwide search that would be composed of records from municipalities across the country?
	
	A National Criminal Database search is what we are currently using and will suffice.
See Page 4 Section 5, Specification and Scope of Work:
Delete “Criminal - Federal Nationwide 10 years Criminal Felony & Misdemeanor 10 years Criminal Search Statewide 10 year” from Package #1 and #2.
Delete “Criminal - Federal Nationwide 10 years, Criminal - Felony & Misdemeanor 10 years, Criminal Search Statewide 10 years” from Package #3

	17
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	Please confirm the functionality of the “Statewide 10 year” service. Should this search the current state of residence for a 10 year scope? Or should this service reveal criminal records in all states of residence in the past 10 years?
	
	See answer to Question #16

	18
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	What is the City's desired method of searching an applicant's criminal history if no statewide search exists?
	
	See answer to Question #16

	19
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	Are vendors permitted to attach a separate cost sheet to elaborate on required services?
	Yes, see answer to Question #15
	

	20
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	Are vendors permitted to attach a separate cost sheet to suggest additional, supplemental services they believe will benefit the City?
	Yes, they will not be part of the pricing evaluation.
	

	21
	10/28/2014
	11/03/2014
	The RFP document, page 10, states the following: “A Woman and Minority Inclusion Plan is a mandatory submittal with your RFP response, and is provided for you in the Submittal Instruction section of this RFP document. The City requires all vendors to submit an Inclusion Plan.  Failure to submit a plan will result in rejection of your RFP response,” I could not locate the referenced Minority Inclusion Plan or the “Submittal Instruction” section of the RFP. If you could provide any clarification on this requirement and the referenced document/section, that would be very helpful.
	
	The inclusion plan was inadvertently deleted from the Vendor Questionnaire.  It must be completed if you plan on hiring additional staff or subcontracting.
See below:
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	11/03/2014
	11/03/2014
	City Initiated
	
	See RFP Schedule Page 1.  Revise Date:  Sealed Proposals Due to the City

The due date and time for responses has been changed to November 17, 2014 4:00PM
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City of Seattle


ITB No. SCL-3359

TITLE:  Pre-Employment and NERC Background Checks

		Item #

		Description 

		Estimated Quantity

		Unit Price 


Price Per Each


MANDATORY

		Extended Price


Excluding sales tax



		1

		NERC 10 year Pre-Employment with Driving Package Quote

		45

		$

		$



		2

		NERC 10 year Pre-Employment Package Quote

		45

		$

		$



		3

		NERC 7 year Package Quote

		45

		$

		$



		

		

		

		

		



		4

		A la carte Quotes



		

		

		



		4a

		Employee Credit



		6

		$

		$



		4b

		Driver’s Record (5 year complete driver’s history review/abstract)

		6

		$

		$



		4c

		Education Verification

		45

		$

		$



		4d

		*International Criminal check

		65

		

		



		

		

		TOTAL

		$

		$





*Provide a single base price for international checks that will apply to a search for any of the three locations (Canada, India or Pakistan)

1. It is MANDATORY that you provide a Unit Price for all listed items.  If there is an error between Unit Price (price per each) and extended price, the City will correct the extended price.

2. The above prices include and cover all duties, handling and transportation charges, and all charges incidental to the requested work unless otherwise amended excluding Sales Tax or Use Tax.  Offer shall agree to all the original City contract terms and conditions without exception.

3. Do not mark, write-in or add any exceptions to the specifications, schedule, terms or conditions.  Do not attach alternative boilerplate.  Any such exceptions can invalidate your Offer and the Buyer can reject your Bid.

4. If you make an error in typing your prices or any corrections to your Offer Submittal, you may mark it in ink and initial the correction.  If it is not marked in ink and or it is not initialled, the Buyer may reject your bid.  Do not use whiteout. 

5. Price Changes in future contract years shall be in accordance with the specifications.  Whole sale and mark-up discount rates will not change through the life of the contract.  Other price changes are restricted to the specifications stated in the solicitation and the contract.

6. Prompt Payment Discount:  _________%____ days.  Note:  Prompt payment discount periods equal to (or greater than) 10 calendar days will receive consideration and bid pricing will be reduced for evaluation by the amount of that discount.


7. Interlocal Agreement: The City of Seattle has entered into Interlocal Agreements with other governmental agencies pursuant to RCW 39.34, in lieu of those agencies conducting a separate competitive bid.  Does Vendor agree to provide this product or service to such agencies?


  

    Yes:______
No:_________


Full Legal Name of Company: ___________________________________________


Signed By:_______________________________Print Name:  _________________


Date: _______________________________________________________________


Company Name:_________________________
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City of Seattle


Inclusion Plan




		Solicitation Number & Title:

		       



		Your Company Name:

		     





Bidders must complete and submit this form with their RFP response. Carefully read the attached instructions.

For questions, call Miguel Beltran, 206-684-4525 Miguel.Beltran@seattle.gov

The RFP instructions for this project identify how many points this Inclusion Plan is given during RFP evaluation.  

Aspirational WMBE Goals.

Propose WMBE utilization goals in the spaces below. These goals represent WMBE utilization the Bidder intends to achieve during contract performance.  The goals should represent a realistic and achievable commitment. WMBE Bidders  may indicate your self-performance as well as work you intend to subcontract to other WMBE firms. See page 4 for instructions. These goals do not need to match, and are not expected to match WMBE Guarantees.

		Project Goals

		



		Specify the percentage participation by woman owned firms.  

		%



		Specify the percentage participation by minority owned firms.

		%



		TOTAL

		%





Strategies.


Describe strategies you intend to use to achieve the aspirational WMBE utilization for this contract.  This may include such strategies as negotiated award to a WMBE firm in lieu of competitive subcontract bids, using WMBE as a tiebreaker per RCW 35.22.650, strategies for self-performance and subcontracting, providing mobilization payments, and offering rapid invoice payments. 

Past Performance


As evidence of your good faith intentions to achieve the WMBE aspirational goals you provide on page 1, describe your past performance on contracts with similar work.  The City may review your past performance on previous City contracts.  Your response should concentrate on achievement when your effort was voluntary (i.e. goals were not mandatory such as a federally-funded DBE requirement), or where you exceeded the regulatory minimum requirement.  

WMBE Guarantees.

This section gives the option to guarantee utilization of certain WMBE firms as evidence of good faith efforts.  If you choose to list WMBE firms, you guarantee to the City and WMBE firm they will be used.  Describe the Guarantee you are giving (a percentage of total contract value, or a scope of work guaranteed to the firm or similar). Please see instructions on page 5.

		WMBE Business Name

		Describe Guarantee



		     

		     



		     

		     



		     

		     



		     

		     



		     

		     





		     

		     



		

		     





Diverse Employment.

If you have a mission or program uniquely committed to hiring workers with employment barriers, veterans, disabled, the chronically unemployed or low income individuals, or woman and minority (if they are underutilized in your profession such as. construction trades), please describe.  The City expects a substantive and highly integrated program, instead of a standard EEO or Affirmative Action policy 

Describe how this mission or commitment would translate directly into placement of such workers to perform the scope of work for this City contract opportunity.


 Inclusion Plan Instructions

WMBE firms include any self-identified or state-certified firm that is at least 51% woman or minority owned (per SMC 20.42). The following may assist bidders:  https://wald1.seattle.gov/dea/registration/ and http://www.omwbe.wa.gov/certification/certification_directory.shtml).   A WMBE does not need to be self-identified and registered within the On-Line Business Directory at time of bid, but must do so before contract execution. 

1. When the City places the Inclusion Plan into the solicitation requirements, the “Bidder” must complete and submit this WMBE Inclusion Plan as part of the RFP response.  If the form is not completed and submitted as part of the response, the bid will be considered non-responsive.

2. The RFP provides the evaluation scoring matrix, which includes how many points this Inclusion Plan will be given in RFP evaluation.  Notes below provide you the context of how points will be considered. The Plan will be evaluated by the City based upon the strength of the good faith efforts to utilize WMBE-owned firms

3. A Prime (i.e. the Bidder, Vendor, the company submitting the proposal) who self-identifies (or is state certified) as a WMBE firm, must complete this form. even if it intends to self-perform.  

4. If you are a WMBE Prime and chose to self-perform elements that are eligible for subcontracting (i.e. work that is discretionary, which a prime may chose to self-perform or subcontract) , you may include your self-performance as part of your aspirational goal, and may name your self-performance for such discretionary work within your Guaranteed WMBE utilization. 


5. All work identified in the Plan to be performed by a WMBE firm must be a commercially useful function for the contract scope.


6. The City may discuss the Plan with the apparent successful bidder before incorporating into the contract; the Plan may be amended by mutual consent.


7. For phased work, (for example, an IT project), provide responses as thorough as possible given the scope known.  If future phases require, the City will review the Plan for mutually-agreed upon updates.

Aspirational WMBE Goals (Page 1)


8. These goals are a serious commitment the Prime (i.e. Bidder or Proposer)  can reasonably and realistically achieve given good faith efforts.  


9. These aspirational goals, good faith efforts, progress reports, and collaboration with the City are material to the contract. 

10. The Bidder is to provide an Aspirational Goal that is achievable.  Failure to achieve the goal itself is not a material breach, but substantial variance below the Aspirational goal volunteered by the Bidder  may measure failed good faith efforts, to establish a reasonable goal and/or build an appropriate effort to achieve the aspirational goal.

11. The Aspirational Goal percentage applies to the entire contract cost.  If change to the contract requires a modification to the percentage, then the City and Prime will discuss whether a greater or lesser goal is appropriate and modify the Plan.


12. The bidder should enter a total WMBE goal on page 1 where indicated.  The City seeks a separate percentage WBE and MBE goal. If the bidder does not provide such goals separately and only gives a total, then the City may seek the two separate percentages after bid opening and rely upon the total for scoring. If the Bidder provides a WBE and MBE goal, but does not total the percentage, the City shall total those percentages to become the total. 

WMBE Guarantee (Page 2)


13. The Prime has the option to list WMBE firms with whom the Prime commits to contract. This does not need, and is not expected, to equal your aspirational goal on page 1.  You may have WMBE firms you can commit at time of bid, but may have other opportunities you are not yet prepared to guarantee. 


14. A WMBE Guarantee should be secured with the WMBE firm in advance of listing on the form.  The City does not require a signed contract in place with the WMBE.

15. Changes to named WMBE Guarantees:   


a.         A named firm includes any WMBE named in the Inclusion Plan with whom the Bidder would Contract if awarded the Contract.  


b.         Any such WMBE that the Prime wishes to substitute during the course of the project must have City Buyer consent through a change order and a demonstrated “good cause.”  “Good cause” shall include the following:


1. Failure of the WMBE to execute a written contract after a reasonable period of time.


2. Bankruptcy of the WMBE.


3. Failure of the WMBE to provide the required bond.


4. The WMBE is unable to perform the work because they are debarred, not properly licensed, or in some other way is ineligible to work.


5. Failure of the WMBE to comply with a requirement of law applicable to subcontracting.


6. The death or disability of the WMBE (if the WMBE is an individual)


7. Dissolution of the WMBE (if the WMBE is a corporation or partnership).


8. If there is a series of failures by the WMBE to perform in accordance with previous contracts.


9. Failure or refusal of the WMBE to perform the work.


c.         If the Prime is making a change to a named WMBE Subcontractor, then the Prime shall use good faith efforts to recruit another WMBE to do the Work. 


Diverse Employment (Page 3)


a. Corporate EEO policies and affirmative action policies are not indicative of a unique employment mission.


b. A response is not required, if you have no such program within your company and/or you do not have a unique mission as part of your business purpose.
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